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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF UTAII. NORTHERN DIVISION

)
I-INITED STATES OF AMERICA, and )
STATE OF UTAH, UTAH DIVISION )
OF AIR QUALITY, )

)
Plaintiffs, )

)
v. ) Civil Action No. 2:13-cv-00721-EJF

)
CHEVRON U.S.A. INC., )

) Magistrate Judge Evelyn J. Furse
Defendant. )

)

COMPLAINT

The United States of America, by authority of the Attomey General of the United States

and through the undersigned attomeys, acting at the request ofthe Administrator ofthe United
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States Environmental Protection Agency ('EPA ), and the State of Utah, on behalf ofthe Utah

Division of Air Quality ("State"), allege:

NATURE OF THE ACTION

l. This is a civil action brought against Chewon U.S.A. Inc. ("Chevron" or

"Defendant") pursuant to Sections I 13(b) and 167 ofthe Clean Air Act ("the Act"), 42 U.S.C.

gg 7a13&) and 7477, for ir{unctive relief and civil penalties for violations of the Prevention of

Significant Deterioration ("PSD') provisions of the Act, 42 U.S.C. g$ 7470-92,and the State of

Utah's PSD rules in the federally enforceable Uuh State Implementation Plan ("SP"), Utah

Administrative Code (:'UAC") Rule ("R") 307-1-3,307-101, 30'7 -405.

JURISDICTION AND. VENUE

. 2. This Court has jurisdiction ofthe subject matter ofthis action pursuant to

Sections I l3(b) and 167 ofthe Act, 42 U.S.C. $$ 7a13@) and 7477, and pursuant to 28 U.S.C.

$$ 1331; 1345, and 1355. The State of Utah invokes this Court's jurisdiction pursuant to 28

U.S.C. $ i367 because its claims are so related to the claims in the United States' action that

they form part ofthe same or controversy.

3. Venue is proper in this District pursuant to Section I l3(b) of the Act, 42 U.S.C.

$ 7413(b), ancl28 U.S.C. gg l39l(b) and (c) because the violations which constitute the basis of

this Complaint occurred in this District and the petroleum refinery at issue is operated by

Defendant in this District.

NOTICE

4. On August 20,2008, EPA issued a Notice of Vioiation ("NOV") to Chevron for,

among other things, violations ofthe PSD provisions of the Act and the Utah SIP, pursuant to

Section I l3(a)(l) and (a)(3) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. $ 7413(a)(l) and (a)(3), and provided a copy

of the Nov to the state.
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5. More than 30 days have elapsed since issuance of the NOV refened to in the

preceding Paragraph.

6. The United States has provided notice of the commencement of this action to the

State of Utah, pusuant to Section I l3(b) of the Act,42 U.S.C. $ 7413(b).

DEFENDANT

7. Chevron is a corporal.ion doing business as Chevron Products Company at the

Salt Lake petroleum refinery located at 2351 North I100 West, Salt Lake City, Utah ("Facility").

8. Chewon is a Pennsylvania corporation.

9. Chewon is a "person" within the meaning of Section 302(e) of the Act,42 U.S.C.

$ 7602(e), and UAC R307-l0l-2.

STATUTORY AND REGULATORY BACKGROUND

.,,10. The Clean Air Act is designed to protect and enhance the quality ofthe nation's

air so qg, j9 promote the public health and welfare and the productive capacity of its population.

Section l0l(b)(l) ofthe Act,42 U.S.C. $ 7401(bxl).

-:. A. The National Ambien! Air Oualitv Standards

1L Section 108(a) ofthe Act, 42 U.S.C. g 7408(a), requires the Administrator ofEPA

to identiry and prepare air quality criteria for each air pollutant, emissions of which may

endanger public health or welfare, and the presence of which results from numerous or diverse

mobile or stationary sources. For each srrch "criteria" pollutant, Section 109 ofthe Act,

42 U.S.C. $ 7409, requires EPA to promulgate national ambient air quality standards

('NAAQS) requisite to protect the public health and welfare.

12. Pursuant to Sections 108 and 109,42 U.S.C. gg 7408 and 7409, EPA identified,

among others, nitrogen dioxide ("NOr"), a form of nitrogen oxides ('TJOx"), and ozone as

criteria pollutants, and promulgated NAAQS for such pollutants. 40 C.F.R. gg 50.a and 50.5;40

C.F.R. $ 50.1l; 40 C.F.R. $ 50.9 and 40 C.F.R. $ 50.10.
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13. Under Section 107(d) ofthe Act,42 U.S.C. $ 7407(d), each stare is requtued to

designate those areas within its boundaries where the air quality is better or worse than the

NAAQS for each criteria pollutant, or where the air quality cannot be classified due to

insuffrcient data. An area that meets the NAAQS for a particular pollutant is termed an

"attainment" area with respect to such polluant. An area that does not meet the NAAeS for a

pariicular pollutant is termed a "nonattairiment" area with respect to such pollutant. An area that

cannot be classified as either "attainment" or "nonattainment" with respect to a particular

pollutant due to insufficient data is termed "unclassifiable" with respect to such pollutant.

14. At all times relevant to this Complaint, Davis County, the area in which the

Facility is located, has lsen slas5ified as attainment or 
'nclassifiable 

for NO,. a form ofNOx.

and ozone, for which NOx is a precursor pollutant. 40 C.F.R. $ 81.345.

B. The Prevention of Significant Deterioration Requirements

15. Part C of Title I of the Act,42 U.S.C. 55 7470-74g1-,sets lorth requiremenrs for

the prevention of significant deterioration ofair quality in those areas designated as either

attainment or unclassifiable for purposes of meeting the NAAes standards. These requirements

are designed to protect public health and welfare, to assure that economic growth will occur in a

manner consistent with the preservation ofexisting clean air resources, and to assure that anv

decision to permit increased air pollution is made only after careful evaluation ofall the

consequences ofsuch a decision and after public participation in the decision making process.

42 u.s'c. $ 7470- These provisions, and their implementing regulations set forth at 40 c.F.R. g

52.21, are refened to herein as the "federal PSD program."

16. Section 165(a) of the Act, 42 U.S.C . g 7 a7 S@),among other things, prohibits the

construction and operation ofa "major emitting facility" in an. area designated as attainment or

unclassifiable unless a permit has been issued that comports with the requirements of Section
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165 and the facility employs the best available control technology ("BACT") for each pollutant

. subject to regulation under the Act that is emitted from the facility.

17. Section 169(l) of the Ac! 42 U.S.C. $ 7479(l), designat6s perolerun refineries

which emit or have the potential to emit 100 tons per year or more ofany air pollutant to be

"major stationary sources "

18. Sections I l0(a) and 161 ofthe Act,42 U.S.C. gg 7+10(a) andT4Tl,require each

state to adopt a sIP that contains emission limitations and such other meast[es as may be

necessary to prevent significant deterioration of air quality in areas designated as attainment or

unclassifiable.

19. A state may comply wilh Sections I lO(a) and 16l of the Act,42 U.S.C. gg

7410(a) and 747l,by having its own PSD rules, which must be at least as stringent as those set

forth al;40 C.F.R. g 51.166, and approved by EPA as part of its SIp.

.20. 40 C.F.R. g 51.166(iX3) provides that state pSD rules must require a major

source undergoing a major modification to apply BACT for each tegulated pollu,tant for which it

would cause significant net emissions increase at the source. The requirement applies to each

emissions unit at which a net emissions increase in the pollutant would occur as a result ofa

physical change or change in the method of operation of the unit.

21. On February 12, 1982, EPA approved Utah's pSD rules into the Utah SIp. 47

Fed,.Reg.6427.

22' The federal PSD program is codified at 40 c.F.R. $ 52.21 and the utah psD rules

are codified at UAC R307-1-3, R307-101, R307-405.

23. The Utah PSD rules apply to any major stationary source that intends to consruct

a major modification in a PSD area. UAC R307-405-6.

24. The Utah PSD rules define a PSD area to mean an area designated as attainment

or unclassifiable under section l0(d) ofthe Act, 42 u.s.c. $ 7407(d). uAC R307-l0l-2.
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25. The Utah PSD rules define "major source" to include, among other things,

petroleum refineries which emit or have the potential to emit 100 tons per year or more ofany

pollutant subject to regulation under the Act. UAC R3 07405-1.

26. The Utah PSD rules define "major modification" to be any physical change or

change in the method ofoperation ofa major stationary source that would result in a significant

net emission increase of any pollutant subject to regulation under the Act. UAC R307-405-1.

2'1. The Utah PSD mles define "net emissions increaset' as the amouni by which the

sum ofthe following exceeds zero: "[a]ny increase in actual emissions from a particular physical

change or change in method of operation at a source" and "[alny other increases and decreases in

actual emissions at the source that are contemporaneous with the particular change and are

orherwise creditable." UAC R307-101-2.

28. The Utah PSD niles define "significant" net emissions as, among other things, an

increase in NOx emissions that equals or exceeds 40 tons per year. UAC R3 07- I 0 I -2.

29. The Utah PSD tules define "actual emissions" as the average rate, in tons per

year, at which the unit "actr-rally emitted the pollutant during a two-year period which precedes

the particular date and which is representative of normal operations." UAC R301-101-2.

30. The Utah PSD rules define "construction" as any physical change or change in

the method of operation (including fabrication, erection, installation, demolition, or modification

ofa source) that'\rould result in a change in actual 6missions." UAC R307-101-2.

31. Ila source is a major stationary source in an attainment or unclassifiable area

planning to construct a major modification under the foregoing defrnitions, then it is subject to

the Utah PSD rutes.

32. A major source subject to the Utah PSD nrles, must perform, among other things,

an analysis of source impacts, perform air quality modeling and analysis, apply BACT, and

i

Case 2:13-cv-00721-EJF   Document 2   Filed 07/31/13   Page 6 of 13



allow for meaningful public participation in the process. UAC R307-1-3.1 - 3.10; UAC R307-

405-6.

33. No major stationary source shall begin actual construction ofamajor

modification without a permit which states that the stationary source or modification will meet

those requirements (a "PSD permif'). UAC R307-1-3.l-3.18.

ENFORCEMENT PROVISIONS

34. Sections I l3(a)(1) and (3) ofthe Act,42 U.S.C. g 7al3(a)(1) and (3), provide that

the Administrator may bring a civil action in accordance with Section 113(b) ofthe Act,

42U.5.C. $ 7413(b), whenever, on the basis of any information available to the Administrator,

the AdminisEator finds that any person has violated or is in violation ofany requirement or

prohibition of, among other things, the PSD requirements of Section 165(a) of the Act,42 U.S.C.

$7a75@), or the PSD provisions ofthe Utah SIP. See also 40 C.F.R. $ 52.23.

.35 Section I l3(b) ofthe Act,42 U,S.C. g 7413(b), authorizes the Adrninistrator to

initiate ajudicial enforcement action for a pennanent or temporary injunction, and/or for a civil

penalty of upto $25,000 per day for each violation occurring on or before January 30, 1997;up

to $27,500 per day for each such violation occurring on or after January 31, lggT and up to and

including March 15,2004;and up to $32,500 per day for each such violation occurring on or

after March 16,2004 and up to and including January 12,2009; and up to $37,500 per day for

each such violation occurring on or after January 13, 2009, pursuant to the Federal Civil

Penalties Inflation Adjustment Act of 1990,28 U.S.C. g 2461, as amended by 3l U.S.C. g 3701,

and 40 C.F.R. $ 19.4, against any person whenever such person has violated, or is in violation of,

among other things, the requirements or prohibitions described in the preceding paragraph.

36. Section 167 of the Act,42 U.S.C. $ 7477, authonzns t!rc Administrator to initiate

an action for injunctive relief, as necessary to prevent ttre construction, modification, or

l
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operation ofa major emitting facility whictl does not conform to the PSD requirements in Part C

of the Act.

37. Utah Code Arm. $ l9-2-10a(3)(a)(ii)(A){C) authorizes the Utah Air Quality

Board to issue orders necessary to enforce the provisions ofthe Urah Air Conservation Act, to

enforce those orders through appropriate administrative andjudicial proceedings, and to institute

judicial proceedings to secure compliance wjth the Utah Air Conservation Act.

38. Pursuant to Utah Code Ann. g l9-2- 107(2)(a)(xiii), as authorized by the Urah Air

Quality Board, the Director of the Utah Division of Air Quality may enforce nrles through the

issuance oforders.

39. Utab Code Ann. $ l9-2- 107(2xb)(viii) authorizes the Utah Division of Air

Quality Director to settle or compromise an civil action initiated by the Division to compel

compliance with the Utah Air Conservation Act and Air Quality Board rules.

40. Utah Code Ann. $ l9-2-l l0(l) authorizes the Director to serve written notice on

an alleged violator whenever he has reason to believe that a violation has occurred.

41. Utah Admin. Code R307-103-1(2) authorizes the Director to issue notices of

violation' 

.ENERAL ALLE.ATI.NS

42. Al all times pertinent to this action, Chewon was and is the owner and opgrator of

the Facility.

43. At all times pertinent to this action, the Facility has produced petroleum products

as a result of conducting several sequential and related process activities. These process

activities have included,. among other things, the operation ofa fluidized catalytic cracking unit

(.Fccu).

44. At all times pertinent to this action, the Facility has emitted and continues to emit

8
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49. In September 2006, Chewon modified the FCCU by using catalyst with high

platinum content.
rrr . ::; :.

, 50, Each ofthe modifications referenced in Paragraphs 47-49 constitute a "major

modification" within the meaning of the utah slp. uAc R307-405-1.-. !::: .r , :

51. Each ofthe modifications referenced in Paragraphs 4749 result in a significant.i 
"1;

net emissions increase of NOx within the meaning of the Utah SIp. UAC Rj07-101.2.

52. Chewon did not apply for and oblain pSD permits prior to commencing any

modification referenced in Paragraphs 47-49.

53' Chewon has never obtained PSD permits in relation to the modificatrons

referenced in Paragraphs 47-49.

54. Chewon violated and continues to violate the Utah SIp by commencing

construction of major modifications at the Facility and operating the Facility after the major

modifications without applying for and obtaining pSD permits. UAC.R307_l_3.1.1.

55' Chewon did not install and has not installod or operated BACT for the control of
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NOx emissions resulting from the modifications.

56. Chevron violated and continues to violate the Utah SIP by failing to install and

operate BACT for the control of NOx emissions resulting from the modifications. UAC R307-1-

3.1.8.

continue.

l0
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67. As provided in Section I 13(b) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. $ 7413(b), and Section 167

.of the Acl42 U.S.C. $ 7477, the violations set forth above subject Defendant to injunctive relief

and/or a civil penalty ofup to $25,000 per day for each violation occurring on or before

January 30,1997;up to $27,500 per day for each such violation occurring on or after

January 31, 1997 and up to and ineluding March 15,2004; and up to $32,500 per day for each

such violation occurring on or after March 16, 2004 and up to and including January 12,2009;

and up to $37,500 per day for each such violation occurring on or after January 13, 2009,

pursuant to the Federal Civil Penalties Inflation Adjustment Act of 1990, 28 U.S.C. g 2461, as

amended by 31 U.S.C. $ 3701, and 40 C.F.R. $ 19.4.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, based upon all the allegations above, the United States of America and

.' the.slate of Utah request t}at this Court:

' l. Order Defendant !o operate the Faqility in accordance with the Clean Air Act and

2. Order Defendant to take other appropriate actions to address or oflset the

unlawful emissions ofNOx attributable to the violations of the Act alleged above;

3: Assess a civil penalty against Defendant ofup to $25,000 per day for each

violation occuning on or before January 30,1997; u! tq $27,500 per day for each such violation

occuning on or after January 31, 1997 and up to and including March 15,2004; and up to

$32,500 per day for eash such violation occurring on or after March 16, 2004 and up to and

including January 12,2009; and up to $37,500 per day for each such violation occurring on or

after January 13, 2009; and

4. Grant such other relief as the Court deems just and proper.

il
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Respectfully Submitted,

FOR THE TJNITED STATES

Deputy Section Chief
Environmental Enforcement Section
Envitonment and Natural Resources Division
U,S. Departrnent of Justice

KATHERINEM. KANE
Senior Attomey
Environmental Enforcement Section
Environment and Natural Resources Division
U.S. Deparfinent of Justice
P.O. Box 761I
Washington, DC 20044-7 6ll
Telephone: Q02) 514-0414
Facsimile: (202) 616-6583
E-mail: Katherinc.Kane@usdoj.gov

DAVIDBARLOW
United States Attomey for the
District of Utah

DANIEL PRICE
Assistant United States Attomey
United States Attomey's Office
District of Utah
185 South State Street
Suite 300
Salt Lake City, UT 841 I I
Teleplrone: (80 l) 325 -323 4
E-mail: Daniel.Price2@usdoj. gov

t,

t2
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FOR THE STATE OF UTAH:
JOHN E. SWALLOW

Utah Attomey General's Office
P.O. Box 140873
195 Nonh 1950 West
Salt lake City, U'I' 841 14

Telephone: (801) 536-4137
Email: Cstephens@utah.gov

CHRISTIAN C.'9fl:Pl lhNS

IJ
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